
 

 
 

Scan the code above or visit www.nwleics.gov.uk/meetings 
for a full copy of the agenda. 

 

 

 

 
 
Meeting CABINET 
 
Time/Day/Date 5.00 pm on Monday, 25 January 2021 
 
Location Remote Meeting using Microsoft Teams 
 
Officer to contact Democratic Services (01530 454512) 
 
 

AGENDA 
 

Item  Pages 

 
1.  APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE  

 
 

2.  DECLARATION OF INTERESTS  
 

 

 Under the Code of Conduct members are reminded that in declaring 
disclosable interests you should make clear the nature of that interest and 
whether it is pecuniary or non-pecuniary. 
 

 

3.  FREEPORT PROPOSITION  
 

 

 Report of the Strategic Director of Place  
Presented by the Planning and Infrastructure Portfolio Holder  
 

3 - 14 

 
Circulation:  
 
Councillor R Blunt (Chairman) 
Councillor R Ashman (Deputy Chairman) 
Councillor R D Bayliss 
Councillor T Gillard 
Councillor N J Rushton 
Councillor A C Woodman 
 

http://www.nwleics.gov.uk/meetings


This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

NORTH WEST LEICESTERSHIRE DISTRICT COUNCIL 
 
CABINET –MONDAY 25 JANUARY 2021 
 
 
 

Title of Report 
 

FREEPORT PROPOSITION 

Presented by Councillor Robert Ashman 
Planning and Infrastructure Portfolio Holder 
 

Background 
Papers 

Response to UK Government – Consultation 
on Freeports (Appendix A)  

Public Report: Yes 

Key Decision: Yes 
 

Financial 
Implications 

A budget of £10,000 was allocated to the commissioning of the 
consultants (Vivid Economics) for their work on the consultation response 
and the proposition. This cost was split equally across the organisations 
involved in the Freeport working group.  

 
There are a number of tax incentives associated with Freeports for 
predominantly new or expanding businesses, however, these are paid for 
by Government and so not a cost to the local authority.  
 
If the Freeport bid is successful it will enable the Council to retain the 
business rates growth for the designated area above an agreed baseline 
which will be guaranteed for 25 years.  The principle behind this 
arrangement is that it gives councils the ability to reinvest receipts into the 
Freeport tax site and the certainty to borrow to invest in regeneration and 
infrastructure that will support further growth.  
 

Signed off by the Section 151 Officer: Yes 
 

Legal Implications If the East Midlands Freeport is given approval by Government a 
governance arrangement would be required for this. The details of this 
are yet to be developed but it is expected that this would align with the 
Development Corporation.  
 
The Council are receiving external legal advice on the Development 
Corporation and further advice will be sought on the issue of the Freeport 
and potential alignment to the Development Corporation in due course. 
 

Signed off by the Monitoring Officer: Yes 
 

Staffing and 
Corporate 
Implications 
 

No staffing implications.  The proposal supports economic recovery and 
corporate Delivery Plan priorities.  
 

Signed off by the Head of Paid Service: Yes  
 

Purpose of Report Aligned to the East Midlands Development Corporation, partners in the 
region are bidding for a Freeport that will bring additional powers and 
tools to improve the economy as we build back better from COVID-19. 
This report seeks Cabinet approval for the Leader to sign a letter of 
support for the bid.   
 

Reason for 
Decision 

The Freeport proposition for East Midlands Airport has the potential to 
attract investment and spur local and regional economic growth as well 
as enhancing international trade. This means new jobs and associated 

3

Agenda Item 3.



 

 

infrastructure to benefit our local residents and communities.  
 

Recommendations  THAT CABINET: 
 

1. ENDORSES, IN PRINCIPLE, THE SUBMISSION OF A 
FREEPORT PROPOSITION PAPER TO GOVERNMENT FOR 
THE EAST MIDLANDS TO INCLUDE THE EAST MIDLANDS 
AIRPORT AND EAST MIDLANDS GATEWAY SITES; AND 
 

2. APPROVES THE LEADER PROVIDING A COMMITMENT OF 
THE COUNCIL’S SUPPORT AND AGREEMENT TO THE 
PROPOSED FREEPORT FOR THOSE AREAS FOR WHICH 
NORTH WEST LEICESTERSHIRE DISTRICT COUNCIL HAS 

STATUTORY RESPONSIBILITY INCLUDING PLANNING AND 
BUSINESS RATES TO SUPPORT THE DELIVERY OF 
THE PROPOSAL.  

 
 

1. BACKGROUND – WHAT IS A FREEPORT 
 
1.1. In February 2020 the Government launched a consultation to inform a future Freeports 

policy. A formal response was submitted on behalf of the East Midlands region which was 
developed by a working group of key local stakeholders including North West 
Leicestershire District Council and led by the D2N2 Local Enterprise Partnership (LEP) and 
Leicester and Leicestershire LEP, supported by a consultant team, Vivid Economics. 

 
1.2. The Freeport proposition for East Midlands Airport has the potential to attract investment 

and spur local and regional economic growth as well as enhancing international trade. This 
means new jobs and associated infrastructure to benefit our local residents and 
communities.  

 
1.3. Freeports are a type of special economic zone. As with other economic zones, they are 

designed to create a favorable business environment which attracts inward investment and 
international trade to support jobs and growth. Within Freeports, trade is facilitated by 
reducing the direct and administrative costs of trading goods with the rest of the world. 
Goods entering a free zone are not subject to typical import procedures. The goods can be 
processed and re-exported from the zone without being considered to have entered the 
host country.  

 
1.4. This does not, however, imply that the activities carried out within the Freeport are 

exempted from other regulatory requirements of the host country such as employee rights 
or health and safety. 

 
1.5. The aims of the zone are therefore to sustain and boost competitiveness by making the 

customs procedures simpler for firms within the zone and delaying the point at which they 
have to pay duties, therefore enhancing cash-flow. 

 
1.6. In the UK, Freeports are a flagship government programme that are expected to play an 

essential part in the UK's post-Covid economic recovery and contribute to realising the 
levelling up agenda, bringing jobs, investment and prosperity across the four nations of the 
UK through the benefits and incentives within the policy. 

 
1.7. In addition to the customs and tariff benefits Freeports will also be able to access significant 

tax benefits, including Stamp Duty Land Tax Relief, Enhanced Structures and Buildings 
and Capital Allowances, Employer National Insurance Contributions Rate Relief and 
Business rates relief.  The majority of reliefs will be accessible to new and expanding 
businesses for a period of 5 years from October 2021.   

 

4



 

 

1.8. Councils will be granted the ability to retain business rates above an agreed baseline to 
reinvest into their local communities over a 25 year period.  The principle behind this 
arrangement is that it gives councils the ability to reinvest receipts into the Freeport tax site 
and the certainty to borrow to invest in regeneration and infrastructure that will support 
further growth. 

 
1.9. Support will also be provided by the Government to successful bidders to contribute 

towards infrastructure costs and facilitate planning to create an environment to attract 
investment into the Freeport area and create jobs and growth. 

 
1.10. East Midlands Freeport Bid 

 
In accordance with the Government’s Freeport’s Bidding Prospectus, the emerging East 
Midlands Freeport proposal includes three Tax Sites. Tax Sites within a Freeport are to be 
distinct and secured areas for the development of facilities to support uses where a range 
of taxation benefits to occupiers will apply. The East Midlands is developing a proposition 
based around East Midlands Airport/East Midlands Gateway with two additional key sites, 
at the Ratcliffe on Soar power station site in Rushcliffe, Nottinghamshire and at the East 
Midlands Intermodal Park site in South Derbyshire. There are clear interdependencies 
between the Freeport and Development Corporation, although the Intermodal Park site is 
not currently within the Development Corporation programme; this will be subject to further 
discussion between local partners and Government. 

 
1.11 In relation to the site within North West Leicestershire, the Tax Site at East Midlands 

Airport/East Midlands Gateway is to be focussed on the existing Western Maintenance 
Area in the centre of the Airport (13-20 hectares), the existing Airport Jetparks Car Parks to 
the west of the DHL Cargo Hub (6-7 hectares) and 53 hectares of undeveloped plots at 
East Midlands Gateway strategic rail freight interchange which was granted permission 
(development consent order) by the Government (National Strategic Planning Project) in 
January 2016. The wider Airport site will form the Principal Port for the Freeport.  

 
2.0 GOVERNMENT CONSULTATION ON FREEPORT POLICY 
 
2.1 The Government Consultation, launched in February 2020, on Freeports set two broad 

policy objectives: regeneration and innovation. The Government seeks to ‘level up’ the 
country’s most deprived areas, delivering high skilled job opportunities for people in 
underperforming regions. Moreover, the UK Government also wants to encourage 
innovation by using Freeports as platforms for innovative business cluster 

 
2.2 The East Midlands Freeport consultation response submitted in July 2020 was 

comprehensive and developed in partnership with the public and private sector including 
North West Leicestershire District Council  and East Midlands Airport and it included some 
key messages for Government including: 

  

 Freeports attract investment and spur local economic development 

 Multimodal freeports can enhance international trade 

 Appropriate governance structures are critical to ensure the success of freeports 

 Local support is essential to build consensus around Freeport sites 

 Freeports can and should be hotbeds for innovation 

 Freeports in the East Midlands context - the success of Freeports will largely depend 
on site selection. Priority should be given to areas that are struggling to ‘level up’; but 
have an appetite for growth. This is particularly the case for a highly connected, and 
outwardly facing region such as the East Midlands region, where labour productivity is 
lagging despite having employment levels in line with the UK. 

 
2.3      An area of particular interest for the Council is the planning implications of the designation 

of a Freeport for any or all of all the East Midlands Airport site. As part of the package of 
incentives for Freeports one example is a simplified/expediated planning process. 

5



 

 

Examples mentioned in the consultation include the use of Local Development Orders, 
these are used to establish a clear framework for development in an area/on a specific 
site. Another option referred to is permitted development rights in line with the operation 
of a Freeport, this currently exists at East Midlands Airport. 
 

2.4   A request for Government support/funding was included in the consultation response for 
areas, such as North West Leicestershire, that may not have experience of either a local 
development order or permitted development rights. Until the Government response is 
issued however it is not clear if this support will be provided.  
 

2.5    In addition the response covered the issue of displacement, it suggested that cost-benefit 
analyses should compare the projected investment stimulated by a policy against a 
business-as-usual. Such an analysis must consider how much of the investment would 
have gone ahead without the Freeport, either in a different UK location (displacement) or 
at the same site (deadweight). It went on to say that it is important to note that 
displacement is not necessarily bad. National displacement is inevitable if the Freeport 
policy is to achieve ambitions around clustering, innovating regeneration and levelling up. 
The challenge will be associated with ensuring that local (and regional) displacement 
remains as low as is possible. 
 

2.6 To minimise the risk of displacement the Freeport should target areas with capacity in the 
local labour market, where new employment opportunities can be created through the 
Freeport Policy. Furthermore, benefits could be targeted specifically to businesses which 
may otherwise choose not to invest, or to invest outside of the UK, as opposed to generic 
benefits. 

 
2.7 The Government issued its response to the freeport consultation in October 2020, and the 

key points can be found at Appendix A. In summary: 
 

 The Freeports consultation proposed a brand-new, bespoke Freeport model, with 
a comprehensive package of measures designed to boost trade, employment and 
innovation. 

  

 Overall, respondents welcomed the ambition of the proposals, the emphasis on 
local economic geography and regeneration, the flexibility of the customs model, 
and the focus on innovation. 

 

 Ports and businesses shared how Freeports could contribute to their sector’s 
success and future growth potential, while many local authorities and public-sector 
bodies were optimistic about the potential of Freeports to help transform local 
economies. 

 

 However, some respondents, including several non-government organisations and 
individuals, expressed views about potential negative impacts on areas including 
port security, safety, workers’ rights and the environment. Some respondents also 
expressed views around economic displacement – particularly in deprived areas – 
and the risk of Freeports being used for tax evasion or money laundering. 

 

 Currently the government is proposing that where there are non-contiguous sites 
included in a Freeport proposal (as is the case in the East Midlands) the tax 
benefits would be reserved for only one site, other sites would be customs sub 
zones. The prospectus which has now been issued however states; Bidders 
should aim for a single tax site to benefit from the tax offer. However, where there 
is an economic case to do so, they may define up to 3 single, individual areas as 
the location of the tax sites.  

 

6

https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/924644/FINAL_-_200923_-_OFF_SEN_-_Freeports_Con_Res_-_FINAL.pdf


 

 

2.8 The Government’s Freeport prospectus and call for sites was released on 17 November 
2020. The deadline for responses is 5 February 2021, MHCLG will then assess bids with a 
decision made in Spring 2021. 

 
2.9 The prospectus places a requirement on local authorities to endorse the bids with a letter 

which must: 
 
Be signed by the Leader of each local authority that is responsible for planning and 
business rates collection in whose area any of the proposed Freeport sites will sit. This 
letter should commit their full support and agreement to the proposed bid specifically 
those areas for which they have statutory responsibility including planning and business 
rates to ensure the delivery of the proposal.  
 

 
3.0 THE FREEPORT PROPOSITION 
 
3.1   The intention is to submit a Freeport proposal for the East Midlands to Government on 5 

February 2021. The proposition paper for a Freeport is currently being worked on by Vivid 
Economics who have been appointed by D2N2 LEP on behalf of all members of the 
Freeport Working Group. This will help to shape and inform any future submission to 
Government. The region’s bid has the support of Councils, Local Enterprise Partnerships, 
Universities, the Midlands Engine, partners for the emerging Development Corporation and 
private sector business representatives including the relevant land owners. 

 
3.2 Vivid Economics is engaging with private landowners to assess the redline boundaries of a 

potential freeport in the East Midlands. The objective is to understand current site use, 
planned investments, and appetite for future development. Through these stakeholder 
engagements, Vivid Economics has been able to assess several sites that could benefit 
from the designation of a Freeport, bringing forward land that could encourage investments 
and deliver significant economic benefits to the region. This includes East Midlands Airport 
and East Midlands Gateway. 

 
 

4.0 PLANNING IMPLICATIONS 
 
4.1 If the East Midlands Freeport is given approval by Government, a governance arrangement 

would be required. The details of this are yet to be developed, but it is expected that this 
would align with the Development Corporation. 

 
4.2 Planning matters will be considered in accordance with the Council’s constitution. However, 

there are a range of implications specifically for Local Planning Authorities arising from a 
Freeport bid. These focus on the need to create an appropriate planning environment to 
ensure the quick and efficient delivery of the Freeport proposal. These issues are being 
addressed by the three relevant Local Planning Authorities, with input from the three 
County Councils from a highways and infrastructure perspective. . Therefore, this is not a 
consideration or recommendation of this report. 

 
4.3 In supporting the bid proposal, the Council does not fetter its discretion as the local 

planning authority, as applications will be subject to consideration and determination in 
accordance with National and Local Planning Policy and the Council’s scheme of 
delegation.  

 
4.4 In terms of infrastructure requirements, these focus around East Midlands Airport and J24 

of the M1. The emerging bid is complementary to the East Midlands Development 
Corporation bid and infrastructure requirements are expected to focus on the movement of 
goods between the sites by highway and railway. Leicestershire County Council will remain 
the Highway Authority and work alongside Highways England, Nottinghamshire and 

7



 

 

Derbyshire County Council Highway Authorities, the Council Network Rail and local 
partners to develop the wider infrastructure components of the Freeport bid. 

 
 

5.0  FINANCIAL AND ECONOMIC IMPLICATIONS 
 

5.1 Section 151 Officers and Chief Executives are working through both the opportunities and 
implications of provisions in the Freeport prospectus for the treatment of Business Rate 
relief, uplift and  reinvestment. Much like an Enterprise Zone, billing authorities will have the 
scope to retain the business rates growth for the designated area above an agreed 
baseline which will be guaranteed for 25 years and reinvest the receipts, including for 
borrowing to fund infrastructure or other upfront costs. Government anticipate that Business 
Rate relief will be available to businesses within the successful sites from October 2021 to 
September 2026 which acts as a further incentive for inward investment.  

 
5.2 The shape of the East Midlands bid in respect of Business Rates remains under 

development but it is proposed that each authority will asked to agree to the reinvestment 
of additionally retained business rates subject to an agreed baseline to the effect that there 
is no detriment.  This position will extend to the agreement with the proposed East 
Midlands Development Corporation (EMDC) allocation enabling delivery of its infrastructure 
programme. Business rates uplift (after no detriment) will be used to support: 

 
1. Delivery of identified infrastructure and connectivity needs in line with agreed local 

and regional ambitions and strategies; 
2. Maximising carbon neutral ambitions and credentials of developments and areas – 

appropriate interventions to be determined; and 
3. Supporting “levelling up” objectives in deprived communities. 

 
5.3 For North West Leicestershire, the priority for reinvestment of retained rates will include 

infrastructure investment and connectivity improvements to better support employment and 
skills opportunities.  Clearly the potential to reinvest retained rates, is a key consideration in 
determining the Council’s support for the bid. 

 
5.4 In terms of economic benefits, the East Midlands Development Corporation proposals, 

which currently cover 2 of the 3 Freeport sites, set out how 84,000 new jobs will be 
generated in the region and c£5bn additional GVA. The economists supporting the Freeport 
bid continue to assess the positive additional benefits that the Freeport could bring. It is 
anticipated these will include increased certainty, acceleration of delivery (earlier 
achievement of new jobs and productivity) and increases in the number of new jobs and 
additional GVA. Any update will be reported to Cabinet at the meeting and considered in 
determining the County Council’s support for the bid. 

 
 

6.0 LEGAL IMPLICATIONS 
 

6.1 At this stage the bid does not have to provide detailed proposals on governance. The 
Council will continue to work with the Development Corporation, the LEPs and partner 
Council’s as well as the key land owners to develop governance proposals as part of the 
full business case, should the initial bid be successful.  

 
 

7.0 NEXT STEPS 
 

7.1 Work has been done by the consultant team and working group to develop the proposition 
for an East Midlands Freeport to be developed into the proposal to be submitted to 
Government. The proposition includes East Midlands Airport and so this report is to gain 
Members endorsement of the principle of an East Midlands freeport proposition. 

 

8



 

 

  7.2  As stated above, the Government’s Freeport prospectus and call for sites was released on 
17 November 2020. The deadline for responses is 5 February 2021, MHCLG will then 
assess bids with a decision made in the Spring 2021. 

  
 
 

 

Policies and other considerations, as appropriate 

Council Priorities: 
 

Supporting businesses and helping local people into 
local jobs 
 

Policy Considerations: 
 

None Identified 

Safeguarding: 
 

None Identified 

Equalities/Diversity: 
 

Inclusive growth is a key theme in the business case 
ensuring that, as far as possible, the Freeport brings 
benefits for all. As well as creating jobs the focus is 
on the quality as well as the accessibility of those 
jobs. 

Customer Impact: 
 

None identified 

Economic and Social Impact:  
 

The Freeport proposition for East Midlands Airport 
has the potential to attract investment and spur local 
and regional economic growth as well as enhancing 
international trade. This means new jobs and 
associated infrastructure to benefit our local residents 
and communities. It should also mean, developed 
alongside proposals for the development corporation.  
 

Environment and Climate Change: 
 

None identified 

Consultation/Community Engagement: 
 

Consultation response on the Freeport submitted July 
2020 

Risks: 
 

There is a risk that the Freeport and the Development 
Corporation develop as two separate propositions 
and so do not deliver coordinated development on the 
site. However there are already strong links between 
the work streams and this would be maintained as the 
work progresses. 
 
There is a risk that a landowner or key local 
stakeholder chooses not to progress to bid stage 
which would put at risk the whole proposal for the 
East Midlands.  
 

Officer Contact 
 

James Arnold 
Strategic Director of Place  
james.arnold@nwleicestershire.gov.uk  

 

9

mailto:james.arnold@nwleicestershire.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank



APPENDIX A  

Key points from Governments freeport consultation 
October 2020 

 
Overview 

 The Freeports consultation proposed a brand-new, bespoke Freeport model, with a 
comprehensive package of measures designed to boost trade, employment and 
innovation.  

 Overall, respondents welcomed the ambition of the proposals, the emphasis on local 
economic geography and regeneration, the flexibility of the customs model, and the 
focus on innovation.  

 Ports and businesses shared how Freeports could contribute to their sector’s 
success and future growth potential, while many local authorities and public-sector 
bodies were optimistic about the potential of Freeports to help transform local 
economies. 

 However, some respondents, including several non-government organisations and 
individuals, expressed views about potential negative impacts on areas including port 
security, safety, workers’ rights and the environment. Some respondents also 
expressed views around economic displacement – particularly in deprived areas – 
and the risk of Freeports being used for tax evasion or money laundering 

 
What is a freeport? 

 The UK Freeport model will maximise geographic flexibility to reflect best the different 
assets and needs of ports and regions across the UK. The government has designed 
this model to apply effectively to areas with seaports, airports and rail ports, and to 
regions featuring multiple ports – no mode of port or area is excluded. 

 The UK Government is working with the devolved administrations on establishing at 
least one Freeport in each of Wales, Scotland and Northern Ireland. The location of 
the English Freeports will be established by a bidding process based on the 
Freeports objectives 

 
Freeport primary customs sites 

 The UK Freeport model will require a primary customs site designated in or near a 
port of any mode, within which the customs benefits outlined in Chapter 3 will apply. 
The government is prepared to authorise primary customs sites in inland locations, 
so long as an economic relationship can be clearly demonstrated between the site 
and the port. The government will consider primary customs sites of any size, so long 
as a clear economic case for the site can be made and our strict security 
requirements enabling HMRC and Border Force to monitor the sites effectively can 
be met.  

 
Additional Freeport subzones 

 Where bidders can make an economic case that they are required, the government 
will allow multiple additional customs sites (“customs subzones”) to enable multiple 
sites to benefit from the Freeports customs model. An economic case would provide 
clear justification of any customs subzones’ relationship to the wider Freeport. For 
example, a space-constrained port may manage the flow of international goods more 
effectively using an additional inland subzone; multiple exporting businesses within a 
region may seek subzone status to benefit from the Freeport; or businesses with 
geographically dispersed supply chains may wish to support these sites using 
subzones. 

 Subzones may be of any reasonable size, may be within ports or inland, and may be 
empty spaces or existing productive sites.  

 
 

11



Freeport tax sites 

 Freeports will also include a single contiguous defined site within which Freeport tax 
reliefs detailed in Chapter 4 will apply, building on the approach taken for existing 
Enterprise Zones in England and Wales. The tax site will likely be located on 
primarily underdeveloped land to generate new, additional productive activity in 
Freeport locations. The upper limit of the size of these Freeport tax sites will be 
between 300-600 hectares. Only customs sites located within the Freeport tax site 
will benefit from the Freeport tax reliefs. 

 The purpose of the reliefs is to incentivise business investment in capital assets and 
employment within Freeports to increase productive activity and achieve the Freeport 
policy objectives. Clear eligibility criteria will apply to maintain the UK’s high 
standards on preventing tax evasion and avoidance. 
 

Freeport outer boundary 

 The primary customs site, tax site, and any additional subzones shall all be contained 
by a Freeport outer boundary. All measures (including any customs subzones and 
the planning, regeneration spending and innovation measures outlined in Chapters 5, 
6 and 7) should be applied within this outer boundary to ensure UK Freeports are 
coherent, with a clear economic and geographic focus.  

 Bidders will be free to determine the location of the Freeport outer boundary within 
size limits so long as they can provide a clear economic and geographic rationale for 
the space the boundary encompasses. These limits will be confirmed in the Freeport 
Bidding Prospectus but should be within a range of 25 – 45km between the furthest 
points.  
 

Freeports in all nations of the UK 

 The UK Government will work with the devolved administrations in Wales, Scotland 
and Northern Ireland to consider separate Freeport allocation processes to those in 
England 

 The UK Government and devolved administrations will announce their next steps in 
due course. 
 

Customs 

 The government has proposed an ambitious Freeport customs model that allows 
businesses operating in Freeport customs sites to access a range of benefits and 
new opportunities to boost their international competitiveness.  

 Businesses will be able to take advantage of customs and tariff benefits, including 
simplified customs procedures to access Freeports and duty suspension while goods 
remain in the Freeport. 

 Responses have generally been positive about the proposed Freeports customs 
model, and many respondents have welcomed the proposed customs facilitations. 

 A majority of the respondents (69%) agreed that having reduced declaration 
requirements for bringing goods into Freeports is a useful simplification and 
businesses felt this would lower costs for them. However, some respondents (31%) 
were concerned that this might hamper tackling illicit activity. 

 The government intends to have simplified declaration procedures for goods entering 
a Freeport to balance trader facilitation and ensuring the security of the border. 

 Businesses bringing goods into the UK will need to complete the Entry Summary 
Declarations. The government will also require businesses to complete standard 
import declaration procedures if goods are being moved into free circulation or 
complete the export declaration procedures if goods within the Freeport are exported. 

 
Tax 

12



 The government wants Freeports to boost trade, promote regeneration and 
employment, and create hotbeds for innovation 

 Overall, responses from local authorities welcomed a regime of tax incentives to 
catalyse business activity and investment within a specific area. 

 Responses from businesses and business groups recorded broadly positive 
reactions to the prospective tax offer; many emphasised the success of international 
Free Trade Zone (FTZ) programmes that used similar tax incentives. 

 Responses from port operators highlighted their generally positive reactions to the 
prospect of a regime of tax incentives within Freeports, especially for its ability to 
create jobs within port areas. 

 The government will set out further details of the proposed tax reliefs confirmed in 
this document in the Bidding Prospectus. 

 
Planning 

 The government received positive responses regarding its ambition to support the 
functioning of Freeports and their ability to boost trade and investment through 
planning and development management. 

 Maritime ports welcomed bringing permitted development rights into alignment with 
the rest of the sector. All modes of ports agreed that increased use of Local 
Development Orders would be positive in supporting Freeports development. Some 
ports noted that anything to simplify the planning regime further would be welcome. 

 Since this consultation closed, the government is in the process of consulting on an 
ambitious set of wide-ranging reforms to England’s planning system in its Planning 
for the Future publication, which may bring further benefits to the development of the 
government’s Freeports offer. 

 
Regeneration 

 Respondents suggested a range of infrastructure investment that could support 
Freeports and their surrounding areas, including transport (71%), training facilities 
(29%), digital (23%), security (21%), commercial land & property (10%) and 
residential property (9%). 

 The government is investing heavily in infrastructure across the UK, from the 
Strategic Road and Freight Networks through to active travel schemes. 

 The government’s aim for nationwide availability of gigabit-capable broadband as 
soon as possible will help benefit all businesses, including users of Freeports 

 The government recognises that Freeports need to be located in places attractive to 
investment. 

 Many respondents recommended that international trade and investment support 
should be provided to businesses in Freeports, with some recommending that 
support is dedicated and site-specific to each Freeport. 

 Respondents to both questions noted the importance of partnering with educational 
institutions within a Freeport to help contribute to the local skills offer. 

 A few respondents (25%) identified that the affordability of housing for workers was a 
need, particularly for those in areas with a large number of low-skilled or low-paid 
workers. 

 
Innovation 

 The government received many positive responses about promoting innovation in 
and around Freeports. There was broad support amongst respondents for innovation 
and new technologies in Freeports, particularly to contribute towards the 
government’s decarbonisation agenda. A majority of respondents also suggested 
increasing the availability of accurate, secure and standardised data to promote 
innovation. 

13



 Respondents highlighted a wide diversity of areas where Freeport-related innovation 
could be of benefit. These areas included issues specific to an individual port, issues 
related to the ports sector as a whole, or issues related to the link between a port and 
the wider economy 

 Therefore, the government will work with UKRI to take forward UK-wide open 
competitions to find innovative solutions to problems faced by Freeports and Freeport 
businesses. 

 As part of the bidding process, bidders will be asked to set out their ambition and 
initial ideas for how innovation could be delivered as part of their Freeports model. 

 
Preventing illicit activity 

 The government sought views on the level of illicit activity in Freeports and asked for 
respondents to explain their answers. A majority of respondents felt there was at 
least some risk of illicit activity in Freeports, citing risks such as money laundering, 
terrorism financing, smuggling of illicit goods – including counterfeit goods and the 
illegal wildlife trade – tax avoidance and tax evasion. 

 A majority of non-governmental organisations believed the risk of illicit activity in 
Freeports was high or very high. 

 
Allocation and governance of Freeports in England 

 Responses to the consultation’s questions on allocation and governance processes 
were broadly positive on the substantive issues. On port modality, there was broad 
acceptance of multi-modal Freeports, and on the objectives and criteria for Freeport 
selection, most respondents agreed that the proposed criteria are appropriate. 
Responses to questions about the role of public bodies in the bidding process were 
less clear-cut, with a plurality in favour of models which bring together multiple 
partners to deliver Freeports. 

 Businesses also generally welcomed the proposed bidding process. However, many 
noted that additional time to collaborate with local authorities and other relevant 
stakeholders would be welcome. 

 Many Local areas were enthusiastic about the role they could play in the 
government’s proposed bidding process. Compared to LEPs and CAs, MCAs had the 
most capacity to take on a coordination role. 

 
 

14


	Agenda
	3. Freeport Proposition
	Appendix A


